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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF MUTHOOT HOMEFIN (INDIA) LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Muthoot Homefin (India)
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at 31° March 2021, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of changes in equity and Statement of Cash Flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at March 31, 2021, and its profit, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on
that date. '

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Financial Statements.




Emphasis of matter — Effects of COVID-19

We draw attention to Note 41 to the financial statements, in accordance with Reserve Bank
of India COVID-19 Regulatory Package, ageing of accounts opting for moratorium offered
by the company. Further, the extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic will impact the
Company’s financial performance is dependent on future developments, which are highly
uncertain.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended
March 31, 2021. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide

a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment of financial assets (expected credit loss)

Ind AS 109 requires the Company to
provide for impairment of its financial
assets using the expected credit loss
(°ECL’) approach involving an estimation
of probability of loss on the financial assets
over their life, considering reasonable and
supportable information about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions which could impact
the credit quality of the Company’s
financial assets. In the process, a significant
degree of judgement has been applied by
the management in respect of grouping its
loan portfolio under risk-based categories,
staging of loans, estimation of expected
loss, and estimation of losses in respect of
those groups of loans which had
no/minimal defaults in the past.

Considering the significance of such
provision to the overall financial statements
and the degree of management’s judgment,
any error or misstatement in such estimate
may give rise to a material misstatement of
the Ind AS financial statements or omission
of any disclosure required by the standards.
Therefore, it is considered as a key audit

Our audit procedures included considering the
Company's  accounting  policies  for
impairment of financial instruments and
assessing compliance with the policies in
terms of Ind AS 109. We have assessed the
assumptions used by the Company for
grouping and staging of loan portfolio into
various categories and default buckets and
their appropriateness for determining the
probability-weighted default (PD) and loss-
given default (LGD) rates. We have tested the
operating effectiveness of the controls for
staging of loans based on their past-due
status. We also tested a sample of stage 1 and
Stage 2 loans to assess whether any loss
indicators were present requiring them to be
classified under stage 2 or 3. We have
performed sample testing of the input data
used for determining the PD and LGD rates
and agreed the data with the underlying books
of accounts and records. We have tested the
arithmetical accuracy of computation of ECL
provision performed by the Company. We
have assessed that the assumptions used by
the management for estimation of allowance
for expected credit losses as at March 31,
2021 are presented and disclosed in the Ind
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matter. |

AS financial statements..

De recognition of financial assets -

During the year, the Company has assigned
loans amounting to Z1000 million for
managing its funding requirements and
recorded a net income of ¥243.06 million
and corresponding un-winding of excess
interest spread receivable of %243.06
million. As per Ind AS 109, de-recognition
of loans transferred by the Company through
assignment is based on the ‘risk and reward’
model and a ‘control’ model. If de-
recognition criteria are met, the financial
assets transferred are de-recognized and
difference between carrying value and
consideration including the present value of
interest payments that it would not give up
(excess interest spread receivable) is
recorded as income in the statement of profit
and loss. There are assumptions made with
respect to the remaining tenor of the
financial assets assigned and other factors
which could materially impact the fair
valuation as well the excess interest spread.

Accordingly, de-recognition of financial
assets was considered as a key audit matter.

We have examined the terms of assignment
agreements on a sample basis to evaluate
whether the de-recognition criteria have
been applied by the Company. We have
assessed the significant estimates and
judgements, including the discount rate and
expected remaining life of the portfolio
transferred used by the company for
computation of excess interest receivable
servicing asset and servicing liability. We
have tested the arithmetical accuracy of
computation of the excess interest spread
receivable, servicing asset and servicing
liability. We have assessed the disclosures
included in the Ind AS financial statements
with respect to de-recognition in accordance
with the requirements of Ind AS 109 and Ind
AS 107. '

Impact of COVID-19

On 11 March 2020, the World Health
Organisation declared the Novel
Coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak to be

pandemic.

We have identified the impact of, and

uncertainty related to the COVID-19
pandemic as a key element and
consideration  for  recognition  and

measurement of impairment of loans and
advances on account of:

Short and long term macroeconomic effect
on business in the country and globally and

Our audit procedures focused on appropriate
application of accounting principles,
validating completeness and accuracy of the
data and reasonableness of assumptions used
in the model; testing of details over
calculation of impairment allowance for
assessing the completeness, accuracy and
relevance of data; model calculations testing
through re-performance where possible.

We have checked the basis of collateral
valuation in the determination of ECL
provision; assessed the appropriateness of
management rationale for determination of
criteria for significant increase in credit risk

its consequential and cascading negative




impact on revenue and employment | considering both: adverse effects of COVID-
generation opportunities. 19 and mitigants in the form of the RBI/
' Government financial relief package; and
Impact of the pandemic on the Company’s | corroborated through independent check and
customers and their ability to repay dues; | enquiries the reasonableness of
and application of regulatory package | management’s assessment of grading the
announced by the Reserve Bank of India | severity of impact of COVID-19 on
(RBI) on asset classification and |segments of its loan portfolio and the
provisioning. resultant impairment provision computed.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include
the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to
be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard. '

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy-and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
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presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. -

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Director’s is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board
of Director’s either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements

as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i)
of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place an
the operating effectiveness of such controls. '




¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the comsolidated financial statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (1) planning the scope of our
audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.




Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure ‘A’ a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

¢)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law havé been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting

2)

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. .

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31¢
March, 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31* March, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Repott in “Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us: '

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its
- financial position in its financial statements — Refer Note 35A to the
financial statement,




ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or
- accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts

ili. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Rangamani& Co
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No.: 003050 S)

Place: Kochi Jane P Thomas
Date: May(04, 2021 Partner

UDIN: 21236744AAAAAP9868 . Membership No. 236744




ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on

Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (‘the Order’) issued by

the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Companies Act, 2013
(‘the Act’) of Muthoot Homefin (India) Limited (‘the Company’)

@) In respect of the Company’s fixed assets:

(a)

®)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets;

The fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the
Management in accordance with a regular programme of verification
which, in our opinion, provides for physical verification of all the fixed
assets at reasonable intervals. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on

- such verification. .

(©

Based on the information and explanations given to us and on the
verification of the relevant records, the title deeds for the immovable

- property are held in the name of the Company

(i)

(iif)

The Company is a Housing Finance Company engaged in the business
of providing loans and therefore does not hold any physical inventories,
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (ii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has granted unsecured loans to one body corporate, covered
in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act,
2013, in respect of which: |

(a) The terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are, in our
opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(b) The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has
been stipulated and repayments or receipts of principal amounts and
interest have been regular as per stipulations. '




(iv)

V)

(vi)

(vii)

(a)

()

©

(c) There is no overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the year-
end.

To the best our knowledge and according to the information and
explanation provided to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
made investments or provided guaranteed under the provisions of
Sections 185 and 186 of the Act.

The Company has not accepted public deposits during the year and
does not have any unclaimed deposits as at March 31, 2021 and
therefore, the provisions of the clause 3 (v) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

- The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost

records under section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the services
rendered by the Company and therefore, the provisions of the clause 3
(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues, including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income
Tax, Goods and Service tax, duty of Customs, Cess and other material
statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident F und, Employees’
State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, duty of Customs,
Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2021
for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
material dues of Goods and Service Tax, duty of Customs, and which
have not been deposited on account of any dispute other than those
mentioned below:

Period to which | - Forum where

Amount . .
Nature of dues (In Lakh Rs.) the amount dlsput.e is
relates pending
Income Tax 2839.00 2018-19 Commissioner  of
Income Tax

(Appeals) Kochi




(viii)

(ix)

x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiti)

(xiv)

(xv)

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the
information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that the
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to
financial institutions, banks, government or dues to debenture holders,

- as applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has utilized the moneys raised by way of public
offer of debt instruments and term loans for the purposes for which they
were raised.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and
explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company and no fraud on the
Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported
during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on
our examinations of the records of the Company, the Company has
paid/ provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under
clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the
Act, where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and
the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the
standalone financial statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment
or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures
and hence reporting under clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us during the year, the Company has not entered into any non-cash




transactions with its Directors or persons connected to its Directors and
hence reporting under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xvi} The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Thus, paragraph 3 (xvi) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

For Rangamani& Co
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No.: 003050 S)

Place: Kochi o ' Jane P Thomas

Date: May 04,2021 ' Partuner
UDIN: 21236744AAAAAP986S Membership No. 236744




ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Muthoot
Homefin (India) Limited (‘the Company’) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date. '

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria

~ established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control

stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the ‘Guidance
Note’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those

- Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate




~ internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects. :

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a-material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgments, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles .A company’s internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that;(1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the Company; and (3). provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition
of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,




material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

For Rangamani& Co
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No.: 003050 S)

Place: Kochi o Jane P Thomas
Date: May 04,2021 _ Partner

UDIN: 21236744AAAAAP9868 Membership No. 236744
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF MUTHOOT HOMEFIN (INDIA) LIMITED

As required by The Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, Auditor’s Report, 2021, we state that:

() The company has obtained a certificate of registration under section 29A of the National
Housing Bank Act, 1987, dated 19® May 2014 from National Housing Bank; and the company
has complied with the Principal Business Criteria specified in Paragraph 4.1.17 of the Non-
Banking Financial Company-Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021;

(ii) = The company has met the Net Owned Fund (NOF) requirement as prescribed under Section
29A of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987

(iii)  The company has complied with Section 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987;

(iv)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Board of Directors has passed a
resolution for non-acceptance of any public deposits;

v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not accepted any
public deposits during the year;

(vi)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the total borrowings of the company
are within the limits prescribed under paragraph 27.2 of the Non-Banking Financial Company-
Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021;

(vii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has complied with the
prudential norms on income recognition, accounting standards, asset classification, loan-to-
value ratio, provisioning requirements, disclosure in balance sheet, investment in real estate,
exposure to capital market and éngagement of brokers, and concentration of credit/investments
as specified in the Non-Banking Financial Company-Housing Finance Company (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2021;

(vii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the capital adequacy ratio as
disclosed in the half-yearly statutory return submitted to NHB, as per the Housing Finance
Companies (NHB) Directions, 2010, has been correctly determined by the company and such

: ,,h ~ ratio is in compliance with the minimum capital to risk weighted asset ratio (CRAR) therein;

(ix) * The Company has furnished the half-yearly statutory return to NHB within the stipulated period

o - as specified in the Housing Finance Companies (NHB) Dircction.s, 2010,




(x) The Company has furnished the quarterly statutory return on Statutory Liquid Assets to the
NHB within the stipulated period as specified in the Housing Finance Companies (NHB)
Directions, 2010;

(xi}  According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has complied with the
requirements contained in the Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 in respect of opening of new branches /offices or in the case of
closure of existing branches/offices, as applicable; _

(xii}  According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has complied with the
provisions contained in paragraph 3.1.3 , paragraph 3.1.4 and paragraph 18 of the Non-Banking
Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021.

For Rangamani & Co
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No.: 003050 )

Place: Kochi '_ m -:f_.':':;'-,-"h:é"ne P Thomas
Date: May 04, 2021 e Partner
UDIN : 21236744AAAAAPIS6S Membership No. 236744




Muthoot Homefin (India) Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021

{Rs in Millions)

As at Asat
Particulars Notes | march 31,2021 | March 31, 2020
| ASSETS
1 Financial assets
a) Cash and cash equivalents 5.1 552,22 661.36
b} Bank Balance other than above 5.2 131.25 ..
¢} Loans 6 13,767.19 17,257.71
d) investments 7 52431 22202
e} Other financiai assets 8 1,645.62 495.99
2 Non-financial assets
a) Property, plant and equipment 9 54.76 77.96
bl Other intangible assets 10 4.04 5.72
c) Current tax assets (Net) 60.67 77.55
d) Other non financial assets 11 43.88 50.72
Total assets 16,783.94 18,849.53
Ji LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
1 Financial liabiiities
a} {I) Trade payable
3} total outstanding dues of micro enterprises - .
and small enterprises
{ii} total outstanding dues of creditors other than 12 3312 26.08
micro enterprises and small enterprises
b} Dein securities 13 3,087.84 2,837.34
<1 Borrowings {other than debt securities) 14 8,743.60 11,327.28
d) Other financial liabilities 15 382.20 276.10
2 Non-financial Liabilities
a} Prowisions 156 3.59 4.66
b} Daferrec tax Liabilities {Net) 30 141.44 111.03
¢} Other non-financial liabilities 17 5.56 €.49
3 Equity
a} Equity share capital 18 1,191.56 1,191.56
b} Jther equity 19 3,195.03 3,068.49
Total liabilities and equity 16,783.94 18,849.53

Notes on accounts form part of financial statements

As per our Report of even date

For Rangamani & Co
Chartered Aczountants
{rhi. 003050 5}

Jane P. Thomas !
Partner

M, No. 226744
Dater May 04, 2021
Place: oihi

er Muthoot

Director

Q kol
Pandurang-i(adam
Chief Financial Officer

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Q«Iw\ ‘W_____""
Eapeh Alexander

Whole Time Director

JintyMathen
Company Secretary




Muthoot Homefin {India) Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021

{Rs in Millions)
Particulars Notesz | Year ended March | Year ended March
31,2021 31,2020
Revenue from operations
{il Interest income 21 2,146.594 2,264.32
{i} Sale of service 460 58.55
{ili] Met gain on derecognised (assigned) loans 205.29 512.53
{iv) Net gain on far value changes 22 9.94 12.14
{n Total Revenue from operations 2,366.77 2,847.54
[{i}} Other Income 23 41.88 28.46
{un Total Income {i + 1) 2,408.65 2,876.00
Expenses
{i} Finance cost 24 1,224.62 1,414.46
(i} Impairment of financial instruments and Write Off 25 S07.14 355.62
{iill Employee benefit expenses 26 343.62 432.68
{iv) Depreclation, amortization and impairment 27 27.92 36.40
v} Cther expenses 28 136.69 212.47
{1v) Total Expenses (IV) 2,239.59 2,451.63
{v] Profit before exceptional items and tax {I} - V) 168.66 424.37
v Exceptional items ) )
{vit} Profit before tax (V- V1) 168.66 424.37
{VIl}  Tax Expense:
{1} Current tax 29 13.10 -
{2} Deferred tax 30 3006 106.60
Met Tax Expense (VIH) 43.16 106.60
{Ix) Profit for the period (VII-VIIN 125.50 317.77
x) Qther Comprehensive Income
{i) Items that will not be classified to profit or loss
(a) Remeasurements of the defined benefit pians 1.39 0.67
i} Income tax relating to items that will not be (0.35) (6.17)
reclassified to profit or Joss
Other Comprehensive income (i + i} 1.04 0.50
{0} Total Comprehensive incaome for the period {1X + X) 126.54 318.27
[xm Paid-up Equity Share Capital {Face Value of Rs. 10/- Each) 1,191.56 1,191.56
{X11e) Other Equity excluding Revaluation Reserves 3,195.03 3,068.49
{X1y)  Earnings per equity share {Face Value of Rs. 10/- Each) 31 :
Basic (Rs.) 1.05 267
Diluted [Rs.) 145 267

Motes on accounts form part of financial staternents
As per our Report of even date

Eapen Mexander
Whole Time Director

George Ale
Director

For Rangamani & Co
Chartered Accountants
{FRN: 003050 5)

U ovea fo::li?’l‘/

Jane P. Thomas - - . Pan'durang Kadam JingMathen
Parther el - Chief Financiai Officer Company Secretary
M Mo, 236744

Date: May 04, 2021
Flace: Kochi

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

———"

éo,r,v\.w




Muthoot Homefin (India) Limited

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2021

{Rs in Millions)

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars ‘March 33,2021 March 31, 202
A. Cash flow from Operating Activities
Profit before tax 168.66 424.37
Adjustments for:
Cepreciation, amortisation & impairment 27.92 36.40
Impairment on financial instruments and Write Off 507.14 355.62
interest Expenses 1,224.62 1,414.46
Net gain on dereccgnised (assigned) loans {205.29) (512.53})
Net gain on fair value changes {9.94} (12.14}
Loss on sale of Property, plant and equipment 1.85 - 008
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 1,714.96 1,706.26
Working capital changes
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents {131.25) -
toans 2,983.38 1,261.21
Other financial assat {1,003.06} 60.99
Other non financial asset 6.84 [23.02)
other financial liabilities and other nan financial lizbilities 26.11 {24.22)
Trade payables 7.04 1418
Provision 0.32 2.26
Cash Generated from Operations 3,604.34 2,997.66
interest Paid {1.145.56) (1,237.10)
Incoma Received on Assignment of Loans 58.72 36.42
Income tax pard 3.79 {72.71)
Net cash flows from/f(used in} operating activities 2,521.2% 1,724.27
B.Cash fiow from lnwvesting Activities
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment/fintangible assets {5.08) {39.73)
Sale of Property, mant and equipment 018 . 0.22
Purchase of Invastments {13,370.80) {55,880.00%
Proceads from Sale of Investments 13,064.94 55,892.14
Purchase af Security Receipt - {222.02)
Redernprinn of Security Receipt 13.51 -
Net cash lows tromf{used in) investing activities {297.25)| {249.39)
C.Cash flow from Financing activities
Proceeds framn issue of shares - -
Borrowings other than debt securities issued {2,583.68) (4,054.71)
Debt Securities 1ssued 250.00 2,837.84
Net cash flows fromf(used in} financing activities {2,333.68) {1,216.80)
Net increase/|decrease} in cash and cash equivalents {109 64) 258.01
Add. Cash and cach equivaients a: at beginning of the year 661.86 403.85
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year §52.22 661.36
Compoenenis of cash & cash equivalents
Cash on hand 5.85 3.50
I CUPrent accownts 546,37 15836
in Bank deposit with matuiity of less than 3 months - 500.00
Yotal §82.22 661.86

Motes on accourds Torm part of financial statements
As per our Report of even date

for Rangamani & Co
Chartered Accountants
{FRN: 003050 S)

Jane P. Tnomas s,
Partner

M. Mo. 236744

Cate: May 0§, 2071

Mace: Kechi

Director

?;/“‘L/ =
Pandurang Kadam

Chief Financiat Officer

For and on behalf of Board of Directers

Eapen ARxander
Whote Time Director

tinuWathen
Cornpany Secretary
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Muthoot Homefin {india) Limited
Notes on accounts for the year ended March 31, 2021

1. Corporate information

Muthoot Homefin (India) Limited was incorporated on 26 August 2011. The Corporate Identification
Number {CIN) is U65922KL2011PLC029231. The Company obtained the certificate of registration
under the National Housing Bank {““NHB"} as required under Section 23A of the NHB Act, 1987 on 19th
May, 2014.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Muthoot Finance Limited.

The registered office of the Company is at Muthoot Chambers, Kurian Towers, Banerji Road,
Ernakulam North, Kochi—~ 682 018.

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of providing long term finance to censtruct,
purchase, acquire, renovate, modify, extend, enlarge or repair any house, villa, flat, apartment on the
terms and conditions as the company may deem fit.

2. Basis of preparation
2.1 Statement of Compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS} notified under the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as
amended from time to time}.

2.2 Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for following assets and
fizbilities which have been measured at fair value:

i) fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) instruments,

iy derivative financial instruments,

i) other financial assets held for trading,

iv) financial assets and liabilities designated at fair vaiue through profit or ioss (FVTPL)

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees {INR) which is also its functional currency and
all values are rounded to the nearest million, except when otherwise indicated.

3. Signiﬁcant accounting policies

2.1, Recognition of inferest income

1. The Company recognises Interest income by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset except for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets and other credit-impaired financial assets.

2. For purchased or originéted credit-impaired financial assets, the Company applies the credit-
adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset from initial
recognition. '

3. For other credit-impaired financial assets, the Company appiies effective interest rate to the
armartised cost of the financial asset in subsequent reporting periods.

4. The effective interest rate on a financial asser, is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of 2
financial asset While estimating future cash receipts, factors like expected behaviour and life




Muthoot Homefin {India) Limited
Notes on accounts for the year ended March 31, 2021

cycle of the financial asset, probable fluctuation in collateral value etc are considered which has
an impact on the EIR.

5. While calculating the effective interest rate, the Company includes ali fees or received to and
from the borrowers that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and
all other premiums or discounts.

6. Interest income on all trading assets and financial assets required to be measured at FVTPL is
recogrised using the contractual interest rate as net gain on fair value changes.

3.2 Recognition of Dividend Income

Dividend income (including from FVOC investments) is recognised when the Company’s right to
receive the payment is established. This is established when it is probahble that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend wiii flow to the entity and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably, '

33 Other Income and Charges

Other income and charges represents income earned from the activities incidental to the business and
is recognised upon realisation.

34 Financial instruments
A. Financi_al Assets
3.4.1 Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value when the parties become party to the
contractual provisions of the financial asset. In case of financial assets which are not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of the financial assets, are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition.

3.4.2 Subsequent measurement

The Company classifies its financial assets into various measurement categories. The classification
depends on the contractual terms of the financial assets’ cash flows and the Company’s business
model tor managing financial assets.

1. Financial assets measured ot amortised cost
A financial asset is measured at Amortised Cost if it is held within a business modei whose
objective is to hoid the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual
terms of the Financial Asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

2. Financial assets meoasured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH}
A financiai asset is measured at FVTOC! if it is held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and contractual
terms of financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
' principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

3. Financial assets measured at fair volue through profit or loss (FVTPL}
A financia! asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTP




Muthoot Homefin {india) Limited
Notes on accounts for the year ended March 31, 2021

3.4.3 Other Equity Investments

Ail other equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recognised in Statement
of Profit and Loss, except for those equity investments for which the Company has elected to present
the changes in fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOC))

B. Financial Liabilities

3.4.4 [initial recognition and measurement

All financial liahilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs. The company’s financial liabilities inciude trade and other
payables, loans and borrowings including book overdrafis.

3.4.5 Subsequent Measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

3.5 Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

3.5.1 Financial Asset

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar
financial assets) is de-recognised when the rights 1o receive cash flows from the financial asset have
expired. The Company also de-recognised the financial asset if it has transferred the financial asset
and the transfer qualifies for derecognition. A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:

+« The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or
¢ The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred contral of the asset.

3.5.2 Financial Liability

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or
expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as de recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss, :

3.6 Offsetting .

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported grosé in the balance sheet. Financial
assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the balance sheet when the
Company has a legai right to offset the amounts and intends to settle on a net basis or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously in all the following circumstances:

a. The normal course of business
b. The event of default _
¢. The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and/or its counterparties




Muthoot Homefin (India) Limited
Notes on accounts for the year ended March 31, 2021

3.7 Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with IND AS 109, the Company uses ‘Expected Credit Loss” model {ECL} , for evaluating
impairment of financial assets other than those measured at Fair value through profit and loss.

3.7.1  Overview of the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model

Expected Credit Loss, at each reporting date, is measured through a loss allowance for a financial
asset:

- At an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.

- At an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses, if the credit risk on a financial
instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Lifetime expected credit losses means expected credit losses that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial asset.

12-manth expected credit losses means the portion of Lifetime ECL that represent the ECLs that result
from default events on financial assets that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date.

The Company performs an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether a financial
assets credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. When making the assessment,
the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument is used
instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses,

Based on the above process, the Company categorises its loans into three stages as described below:

For non-impaired financial assets

» Stage 1 is comprised of all non-impaired financial assets which have not experienced a
significant increase in credit risk (SICR} since initial recognition. A 12-month ECL provision is
rmade for stage 1 financial assets. In assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly,
The Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default cccurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial
recognition. ' ' '

« Stage 2 is comprised of all non-impairéd financial assets which have experienced a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. The Company recognises lifetime £CLL for stage
2 financial assets. In subsequent reporting periods, if the credit risk of the financial instrument
improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial
}ecognition, then entities shail revert to recognizing 12 months ECL provision.

For impaired financial assets:

financial assets are classified as stage 3 when there is objective evidence of impairment as a resuit of
cne or more loss_ events that have occurred after initial recognition with a negative impact on the
estimated future cash flows of a loan or a portfolio of Joans. The Company recognises lifetime ECL for
impaired financial assets.




Muthoot Homefin (India} Limited
Notss on accounts for the year ended March 31, 2021

3.7.2 Estimation of Expected Credit Loss
The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

Probability of Default {PD) - The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over
a given time horizon.

The Company uses historical information where available to determine PD. Considering the different
products and schemes, the Company has bifurcated its loan portfolio into various pools. For certain
poots where historical infermation is available, the PD is calculated considering fresh slippage of past
years. For those pools where historical information is not available, the PD/ default rates as stated by
external reporting agencies is considered,

Exposure at Default - The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date,

considering expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of
principal and interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on
committed faciiities, and accrued interest from missed payments.

Loss Given Default — The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a
default occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due
and those that the lender weuld expect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral.

Forward looking Information

While estimating the expected credit losses, the Company reviews macro-economic developments
occurring in the economy and market it operates in. On a periodic basis, the Company analyses if there
is any relationship between key economic trends like GDP, unemployment rates, benchmark rates set
by the Reserve Bank of India, inflation etc. with the estimate of PD, LGD determined by the Company
kased on its internal datz. While the internal estimates of PD, LGD rates by the Company may not be
always reflective of such relationships, temporary overlays, if any, are embedded in the methodology
to refiect such macro-economiic trends reasonably.

To mitgate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company seeks to use collateral, where possible.
The collateral generally in the form of mortgages of Properties However, the fair value of collateral
affects the calculation of ECLs. The collateral is majorly the property for which the loan is given. The
fair vaiue of the same is based on data provided by third party or management judgements.

Collateral repossessed - In its normal course of business whenever default occurs, the Company may
take possession of properties or other assets in its retail portfolio and generally disposes such assets
through auction, to settle outstanding debt. Any surplus funds are returned to the customers/obligors.
As a result of this practice, assets under legal repossession processes are not recorded on the balance
sheet.

Write-offs - Loans are written off {either partially or in full) when there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the borrower does not have
assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subjected
1o write-offs. Any subsequent recoveries against such loans are credited to the statement of profit
and loss. '



Muthoot Homefin (India) Limited
MNotes on accounts for the year ended March 31, 2021

3.8 Determination of falr value of Financial Instruments

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, investments at fair value at each balance sheet
date,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liahility takes place
either:

i In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
B. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs,

The financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised
below:

Lavel 1 financial instruments - Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted
prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the
measurement date. The Company considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading
activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there
are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet date.

Level 2 financial instruments - Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant,
are derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the
instrument’s life. Such inputs include guoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets,
quoted prices for'identical instruments in inactive markets and observable inputs other than quoted
prices such as interest rates and yield curves, implied volatilities, and credit spreads. In addition,
adjustments may be required for the condition or location of the asset or the extent ta which it relates
to items that are comparable to the valued instrument. However, if such adjustments are based on
unobservable inputs which are significant to the entire measurement, the Company will classify the
instruments as Level 3. '

Level 3 financial instruments - Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant
to the measurement as whole. .




Muthoot Homefin {India} Limited
Notes on accounts for the year ended March 31, 2021

3.9 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at banks and
on hand and short- term deposits, as defined above.

3.10  Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment, if any. Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade
discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for
its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located.

The cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for its intended use at each reporting date are
disclosed as capital work-in-progress.

Subsequent expenditure related to the asset are added to its carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset only if it increases the future benefits of the existing asset, beyond its previously
assessed standards of performance and cost can be measured reliably. Other repairs and maintenance
costs are expensed off as and when incurred.

Property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrving amount of the asset) is recognised in
other income / expense in the statement of profit and loss in the year the asset is derecognised. The
date of disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is the date the recipient obtains control
of that item in accordance with the requirements for determining when a performance obligation is
satisfied in Ind AS 115.

3.10.1 Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated using written down value {WDV) method to write down the cost of property
and equipment to their residual values over their estimated useful lives which 1s in line with the
estimated useful life as specified in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013,

Leasehold Improvements are amortised in 10 years unless it has a shorter iife.
The estimatea useful lives are as follows:

Particulars Useful life
Furpiture and fixture 1C years

Office equipment S years

Server and networking 6 years
Computer 3 years
Building 30 years

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewea at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
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3.11 Intangible assets
The Company’s intangible assets consist of computer software and website development.

An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably and it is probable that
the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the Company.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of an
intangible asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable expenditure on making the
asset ready for its intended use and net of any trade discounts and rebates. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses,

Intangible assets comprising of software and website development are amortised on a WDV basis over
a period of 5 years, unless it has a shorter useful life.

Gains or losses from derecognition of intangible assets are measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognised in the Statement of Profit
or Loss when the asset is derecognised.

3.12 Impairment of non—financial assets: Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

The Company’s assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is any indication that any Property,
Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets or group of assets called Cash Generating Units (CGU) may
be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount to determine the extent of impairment, if any.

An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU)} fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

in assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions
are taken into account. !f no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is
used. These caleulations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly
traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists,
the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairmeant
loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the
carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.
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3.13 Employee Benefits Expenses

3.13.1 Short Term Employee Benefits

The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the
services rendered by employees are recognised as an expense during the period when the employees
render the services

3.13.2 Post-Employment Benefits

A. Defined contribution schemes

Ali eligible erployees of the company are entitled to receive benefits under the provident fund, a
defined contribution plan in which both the employee and the company contribute monthly at a
stipulated -percentage of the covered employee’s salary. Contributions are made to Employees
Provident Fund Organization in respect of Provident Fund, Pension Fund and Employees Deposit
Linked Insurance Scheme at the prescribed rates and are charged to Statement of Profit & Loss
at actuals. The company has no liability for future prowdent fund benefits other than its annual
contribution.

B. - Defined Benefit schemes
Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity covering eligible employees under which a lump sum payment is
paid to'vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an
amount reckoned on the respective employee’s salary and his tenor of employment with the
Company. The Company accounts for its liability for future gratuity benefits based on actuarial
valuation determined at each Balance Sheet date by an-Independent Actuary using Pro;ected Unit
Credit Method,

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates
used for determining the present value of the obiigation under defined benefit plan are based on the
market yields on Government Securities as at the Balance Sheet date,

An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments
in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and
meortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, these
tiabilties are highly sensitive to changes in these assumptlons All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date.

Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses {excluding amounts included in net interest
on the net cefined benefit Hability), are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a
cbrresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through Other Comprehensive income in the period
in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent periods.

3.13.3 Provisions (other than employee benefits)

Frovisions are recognised when the enterprise has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a
result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be reguired to se'tle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
oblugatlon
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When the effect of the time value of money is material, the enterprise determines the level of
provision by discounting the expected cash flows at a pre-tax rate reflecting the current rates specific
to the liability. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss
net of any reimbursement.

3.14 Taxes
Income tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax
3.14.1 Current Tax

Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable in respect of taxable profit for a period. Taxable
profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss because of items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable
or deductible in accordance with applicable tax laws.

The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted, or substantively
enacted, by the end of reporting date in India where the Company operates and generates taxable
income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss i.e., either in other comprehensive income or in equity. Current tax items are recognised in
correfation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate. :

3.14.2 Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities used in the computation of taxable profit and their carrying amounts in the
financial statements for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

i, Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or
fiability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

i Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controiled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax fosses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be avaitable against which the deductible temporary differences,
and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

i.  When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initiai recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

ii. In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent
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that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss i.e.,
either in other comprehensive income or in equity. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation
to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxabie entity
and the same taxation authority.

3.15 Contingent Liabilities and assets

A contingent liability is 2 possible obligation that arises from past events whase existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be
measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence
1n the financia! statements.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence wili be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or mere uncertain future events not
whelly within the control of the entity. The company does not have any contingent assets in the
financial statements.

3.16  Earnings Per Share

The Company reposts basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Ind AS 33 on Earnings
per share. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
sharehoiders {after deaucting preference dividend and attributable taxes) by the weighted a«erage
number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For caiculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
sharehoiders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed
converted as of the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. In computing
the dilutive earnings per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive and that either reduces
the earnings per share or increases loss per share are included.
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3.17 Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the substance
of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or whether the arrangement conveys a right to use
the asset.

Leases that do not transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to
ownership of the leased items are operating ieases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term, unless the
increase is in line with expected general inflation, in which case lease payments are recognised based
on contractual terms. Contingent rental payable is recognised as an expense in the period in which
they it is incurred.

4 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires the management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosure and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at
the end of the reporting period. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which'the estimates are
revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods. Although these estimates are based on the
management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets or fabilities in future periods.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in
applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized i in the
financial statements as included in the following notes:

4.1 Business Model Assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI and the business
model test. The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of
financiai assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment
includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence induding how the performance of the assets is
evaiuated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and
how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated. The Company
monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income that are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and
whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held.
Monitaring is part of the Company’s continuous assessment of whether the business model for which
the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether
there has been a change ir. business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those
3ssets.
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Based on this assessment and future business plans of the Company, the management has measured
its financial assets at amortised cost as the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to
collect contractual cash flows, and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principle and interest {“the ‘SPPI criterion’)."

4.2  Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method

The Company’s EIR methodology, recognises interest income using a rate of return that represents
the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural life of loans given and
recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages and other characteristics
of the product life cycle (including prepayments and penalty interest and charges}.

This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and
life-cycle of the instruments, probabie fluctuations in collateral value as well as expected changes to
India’s base rate and other fee income/expense that are integral parts of the instrument

4.3 Impairment of loans portfolio

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement,
in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when
determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These
estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of
allowances.

It has been the Company’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience
and adjust when necessary.

4.4  Defined employee benefit assets and liabilities

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions
that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the
discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the
valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit cbligation is highly sensitive te changes in these
assumptiens. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. '

4.5 Fair value measurement

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot
be measured based on guoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using various
valuation techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible,
but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments
include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility, Changes in assumptions
about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

4.6 Othér estimates

These include contingent liabilities, useful lives of tangible and intangible assets etc.
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Muthoot Homefin (India} Limited :

Notes to the financial statements for the year endled March 31, 2021

Credit Quality of Logn Assets

{Rs in Millian]

The tabie below shaws the credit quality and the maximum exposure to cradit visk based on the Company’s internal credit rating system and year-end stage classification.
The amounts presented are gross of impairment allowances, Details of the Company’s internal grading systam are explained in Note 38.

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Collective | Collective Collective | Collegtive

internal rating grade
Performing
High grade 11,584.62 - 11,584.62 15,274.86 - - 15,274.86
Standaid grade 734.56 - 734.56 935.75 - 9535.75
Sub-standard grade - 674.52 674.52 . 520.85 - 520.85
Fast due but not impaired 42843 428.43 - 486.17 - 486.17
Mon- performing
Individually \mpaired - - 580.94 680.99 - z 337.97 337.97
 Total - 1231918 | 110295 680.94 | 14108.07 | 1621061 1007.02 337.97 | 17,535.60
Ind AS Adjustment t?s-Lg]* {118.52)
Gross Carrying Amount 14,027.88 17,437.08
An analysis of changes n the gross carrying t and the corresponding ECL allowances, as follows:

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Collective | Sollactive

Gross carrying amount opening balance 16,210.61 1,007.02 337.97 17,555.60 18,038.26 985.80 145.25 19,165.32
Mew assets originated or purchased/further increase 1,220.20 £4.59 - 1,274.79 4,480.64 - - 4,480.64
in exisfing assets
Eisets derecognised or repaic [excluding write offs) {4,247.82) {13.99) - {4,261.81) 15,612.67) (61.27) (112.76) {5,786.70}
Transfers to Stage 1 272.13 [269.77 (8.38) - - -
Transters to Stage 2 (77213} 776.99 {4.86) - {72.58) #2.49 {9.91) -
Transfers to Stage 3 [348.26} [445,89) 754.15 - {6:23.04) - €23.04 '
Amounts written off {21.55) {6.00) (437.96) {465.51) - - (307.65} {307.65)
Gross carrying amount closing balance 12,319.18 1,102.95 680.94| 14,103.07] 1521061 1,007.0% 337.97 , 17,555.60
Ind AS Adjustment 75.19] {118.52}
Gross Carrying Amount 14,027.88 | | 17,437.08
Reronciliation of ECL balance is given below:

As at March 31, 2021 As at Moarch 31, 2020
Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

j lgctive Collective | Collgctive

ECL allowante - opening balance 12,98 5.53 39.98 58.49 11.15 4.21 20,13 35.49
ECL Remeasurements due to changes in EAD / 11.00 4.59 - 15.59 112 {3.41) {11.13) -13.42
assurptions
Transfers to Stage 1 {1.01) (30.53) {2.07) (33.61) - - - -
Transfers to Stage 2 2.80 87.9% {1.20) £9.55 0.07 4.73 (1.01} 3.79
Transfers tu Stage 3 1.26 {50.47) 196.74 147,52 0.64 - 63.20 &63.84
Amounts wntten off 0.08 {0.68) {108.51)| {109.31) - - {31.21) [31.21
£C1 allowance - tlosing balance 27.11 16.39 124.94 158.44 12.98 5.53 58.49

30.98




Muthoot Homefin {India) Limited
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Note 7: Investments [Rs in Million}
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Amaortised At fair value Amortised At fair value
cost Through Other Through Designated at cost Through Other;  Through Designated at
Comprehensive| profit or loss fair value Comprehensivel profit or loss fair value
income through profit Income through profit
orloss orloss
Security Receipts B 208.51 222.02
Mutual Funds - 315.80
Total Gross {A) - 524.31 - - - 222.02 -
i} Overseas investments - - - - - - - -
ii} investments in Ingia - 524.31 - - - 222.02 -
Total Gross {B) . 524.31 - - - 222.02 -
Less © Allowance for impairment loss - - - - - - -
[Total- Net D= tA}-{C} - - 524.31 - - - 222.02 -
7.1 Details of investment in security receipts are as follows:-
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Lnits Amount Linits Amount
Security Receipts 208505 208.51 222020 222.02
[Total 208.51 222.02
7.2 Details of investment in mutual funds are as follows:-
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Units Amount Units Amount
Aditya Birla Sun Life Mutual Fund 4059735 45.18 - -
Mirae Asset Mutual Fund 33331.71 35.14 - -
Suriaram Mutual Fund 27518.47 30.12 - -
USP ivtutual Fund 31836.65 35.09 - -
SBI Mutual Fund 20920.01 70.12 - -
ICiCH Prudential Mutual Fund 631810.36 70.12 - -
T Mutua! Fund 106582.68 30.03 - -
Total 315.80 -
Note 8: Other financial assets
Particulars As at March [ As at March 31,
31, 2021
Security deposits 14.26 13.98
Receivable on Assignment of Loans 622.68 476.11
Other finarcial asseis 1,008.68 5.90
[ Total 164562 | 495.99




Muthoot Homefin {India) Limited
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Note 9: Property, plant and equipment {Rs in Million}
Particulars Furniture & Leasehold Computer Office Building | Serversand | Total
Fixtures _ | Improvements Equipment Networks
Gross Carrying Amount:
At April 1, 2019 1201 49.07 30.86 17.86 - 319 ] 11299
Additions 241 19.67 2.84 7.28 2.49 0.90 35.59
Disposals 0.74 - - - - - 0.74
At March 31, 2020 {A) 13.68 68.74 33.70 25.14 2.49 4.09 | 147.84
Addilions 0.99 191 0.01 1.00 - 0.0 3.52
Disposals 0.03 348 - 0.80 - - 4.31
At March 31, 2021 (B) 14.64 67.17 33.71 25.34 2.49 4.10 | 147.45
Depreciation and impairment:
At April 1, 2019 2.65 16.66 18.20 5.17 - 0.75 36.23
Disposals 044 - - - - - 0.94
Depreciation charge for the year 2.79 12.80 8.98 7.58 0.12 1.22 33.49
At March 31, 2020 (C) 5.00 22.86 27.18 12.75 0.12 1.97 69.88
Disposals 0.01 1.71 - 0.56 - - 2.28
Depreciation charge for the vear 2.42 12.05 3.76 5.80 0.22 0.24 25.09
At March 31, 2021 {D} 7.41 33.20 30.94 17.99 0.34 2.8 92.69
Net book value:
At March 31, 2020 {A-C) 8.68 45.88 6.52 12.39 2.37 212 77.96
At March 31, 2021 (8-D) 7.23 33.57 2.717 7.35 2.15 1.29 54.76

The corhpany has capital work in progress Rs.Nil {March 31, 2020 : Rs.Nif)

Note 10: Othar Intangible Assets

Particulars

Computer Software and
Waebsite Development

Gross Carrying Amount:

At April 1, 2014 1156
Additions 4.14
Dispgsais -
At March 31, 2020 {A) 15.7¢
Azditions 1.16
Disposal's -
At March 31, 2021 (B) 16.86
Depreciation and impairment:
At April 1, 2019 " 7.07
Disposals -
Depreciation charge for the yaar 2.91
At March 31, 2020 (C ) 2.98
Disposals -
Depreciation charge for the year 2.84°
At March 31, 2021 {D) 12.82
Net book value:
At March 31, 2020 {a-C) 5.72
4.04

At March 31, 2021 {B-D)

Note 11: Other Non-financial assets

As at March 31,

Particulars As at March 31,
2021 2020
Prepaid expenses 29.72 41,88
Qther receivable 4.36 4.87
Balance from government autharities .80 3.97
Total 43.88 50.72
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Mutheot Homefin {India) Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Note 15: Other Financiél liabilities {Rs in Million})

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
interest accrued but not due on borrowings 271.33 192.27
Due to assignees towards collections in derecognised assets 62.24 49.96
Salary Payable 89 1.74
Others 39.72 32.13
Total 382.20 276.10
Note 16: Provisions

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Provision for employee benefits
- Gratuity {Refer Note 32) 3.59 4.66
Total 3.59 4.66
Note 17: Other Non-financial liabilities

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Statutory dues payable 5.56 6.49
Total 5.56 6.49




Muthoot Homefin [indla} Limited
Notes to the finaodial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Note 18: Equity share capital Rz in Mitlion)
The reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beglnning and at the end of the year
Partieulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2001 2020
Authorised:
150,000,008 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each (March 31, 2020: 150,000,000 Equity Shares of
Rs. 10/ each} 1,500.00 1,500.00
{ssued, subscribed and fully paid up
119,155,843 Equity Shares of Rs. 10f- eacn {htarch 31, 2020 : 119,155,843 Equlty Sharas 1,151.56 1,191.56
of Rs_10/- aach)
Fotal Equity 1,191.56 1,191.56
Reconciliation of the number of shares and ding ot the beginning and st the end of the year
Particulars No. of shares Amount in Rs.
As at april 1, 2019 11,81,55,843 1,191.56
{Issuad guring the yaar . .
As at March 31, 2020 11,91,55,843 1,191.56
Hssued during the year - -
As at March 31, 2021 11,91,55,843 1,191.56

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

a] The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs,10 per share. All thase shaias have the same rights ard preferences with respect to the payment of

dividend, rapayment of capital and voting.

b} In the event of hquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be sntitied to receive any of the remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all

preferential amounts, H no such pref

Detalls of Equity shareholder holding mors than 5% shares in the company

ial ts maist currently. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of ouity shares hald by the shareholders.

Note 20; Nature and purpose of reserve

Nature ang purpose of Reserves

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
No. of shares % holding In the No, of shares % holding in the
class chass
Muthool Finance Umvited 11,91,55,843 160% 11,91,55,843 100%
Note 19: Other equity
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
200 2020

5 y reserve [Py to section 23 C of National Housing Bank Act, 1987)* )
Opening balance 29359 230.04
Add: fransfer from surplus batance in the Statement of Profit and Loss 2510 63.55
Closing balance 31863 293.59
Security Premipm
Openr.g balance 2,146.81 2,146 81
Add: Securities premium receved during the year - -
Closing balance 2,146.81 2,146.81
Retained Earnings
Cpentng balance 627.50 373.28
Add: Profit lor the yaar 125.50 urI?
Less: Appropr.ation -

Transier to Statutary Reserve (5.10) {63.55)
Clasing balance 717.90 627.50
{ther Comprehensive Income
Opening balance A58 0.09
Add: Other Comprehantive Income $or the yaar before income tan 129 0.67
Less income Ton on OC1 {(.35) 017}
Closing balance 1.63 0.59
Totat 3,195.03 3,068.49

Securities Premiuty Aeserve: This Reserve reprasents the premium on issue of shares and can be ytilized in accordance with the provisiens of the Companies Act, 2013,

Retained earnings

This Raserve represents the cumulative profits of the Company, This Aeserve can be utilized in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

Scatulory reserve

* Section 29C i) of The National Housing Bank Act, 1987 defines that every housing finance institution which is 3 Company shall craste s reserve fund and transfer therein a sum
not lass than twenty percent of its nat proflt every year as disclosed in tha statement of profit and loss before any dividend is declared. For this purpase any special reserve
created by the Company under Section 36{1} (viii) of Income tax Act 1961, is considered to be an eligible transter. The company has transferred an amount of Rs. 25.10 million to
special reserve in terms of Section 26C (i) of NHB Act 1987,




98z [T 12101
20°ET vLTE WD IBLID
8E'S PL'0T pRIBADIR S103p PG
— OB TEPEN | TR .
papud a2ak ) 404 PAPUR JEDA DY) 104 sIeney
BLUGOU| IO (£7 HJON
[iX43 6’6 SIDUELD BN|EA J1€) GO [5507)/uiCT 12N 16101
- (G pasjeamun -
PETT PT'6 pasyedy -
'saBuey anjep ey
L% 4] 66 {v) saBueyd amyza aey uo {ssoj}fured 1aN |e)CL,
PT'ZT 56 SPUN{ JENIY Ut SIUBWIISaAL) -
. . oiood JuaugsaaL uQ
ssot 1o Woud ydnoayy anjea ney
e syuawmnsu [eueul vo (ssof} Aued JaN (vl
Yoie T W
PRpUd e B) 104 AApUS 1EPA Iy 404 SR .
salueys anjea ey uo wied JaN 12z NoN
wEraLe - TEPIT T - FEIVT ¢ - V6 Ol L - %101
[ - 7Y - et - LT - W0IUT 158JEU 10
0f'€ - oge - SL'ST - SL°ST - syueg M SHSOCap Lo Jsatsu|
SLesT'T - SL6STT - I8°621T . IBHZIL - SURQ| LD W0 I5BIBIU(
TSURGY U0 TSeraat
S50} 40 £50¢ JO
1j0sd ySnowgy angea . yoad yInosyy anen .
Hejje pwjissep 150 pasipowry 120 ydnouy; anea e ye patpssep 1500 pasypowy 20 yBncay;.
SISy eruewy 1B paInNseIw ey je pasnsesu SYASSY [BIauRUL JE pasnseaw aNjeA He] 1e painseaws
|elot UG HUOIU) ¥ 1| Sivssy ey 14 4D S}ASSY |RIDURLY WO L2l T} UD oy ysaaagu) | s1essy |eduewy ug 512559 [RlIveUlL UQ SIPINMURY
0702 'T& YIIBN PApLa JEaA o) 103 T20Z 'T€ Ydie papud sead gy o4

{uGilnp W sy}

BWIOIY 3S3I30U| ST JION

TZ0Z “TE 42BN PAPUS JeA 343 JO) SIUWBLELS [EIOURUL 3] O} S0

PIUWET {EIPLE ] uyAWSH J00WNIN




Muthoot Homefin {India) Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Mote 24; Finance Cost

{Rs in Million)

For the year ended March 31,2020 |

F‘Lwﬁwt
Particulars On Financial liabilivies! Or Financlal liabilities Total On Financial On Financial Total
measurad at fair value measured at labilities lizbilities
through profit or loss Amortised Cost measured at fair measured at
value through | Amortised Cost

Interest an Loan from Banks - 816.61 816.61 - 1,028.42 1,028.42
Interest on Loan from Financisl Instituions - 36.59 36.59 - 24.35 24.35
Interest on Refinance from NHB - L51.02 51.02
Interest on Debt Securities - 302.45 302.45 - 253.54 25394
Interest on Commercial Paper - - - 59.60 59.60
Interest on Inter Corporate Deposits 0.31 0.3 . 34.48 34.48
Other borrowing costs - 17.64 17.64 - 13.67 13.57
Total - 1,224.62 1,224.62 - 1,414.46 1,414.46 |

Note 25: Iimpairment of financial instroments and write off
The below table show impairment loss ¢n financial instruments charge to statement of profit and loss based on category of financtal instrument,

Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2021 For the year ended March 31, 2000 |
O Financial On Fnancial Total On Finandel On Financial Total
instruments. instruments instruments nstruments.
Imreasured 2t fair value measured at measured at fair measured at
through Q€1 Amortised Cost value through OC1 | Amontised Cost
La0s - 507,14 507.14 - 353.62 355.62
Tetal - 507.14 507.14 . 355.62 355.62
Note 26; Employee Benafit Expanses
Particudars For the year ended Far the year ended
March 31,2021 1| March 31,2020 |
Salaries and Wages 326.18 407.76
Convribytions to Provident and Other Funds 10.72 14.63
Gratuity Expenses . 2.32 2.26
iStaff Welfare Expenses 4.40 8.03
Total - 343.62 432.68
‘Note 27: Depreciation, amortization and irpairment .
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2021 |
Depraciation of Tangible Assets 25.08 33145
|Amortization of Intangible Assets 2.84 251
Totai 27.92 36.40



Muthoot Homefin (India) Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Note 28: Other Expenses {Rs in Million}
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2023 | March3),2020
Rent 49.21 58.48
Electricity Charges 5.60 8.58
Business Promotion Expenses 0.15 1.40
Advertisement 0.22 0.05
Repairs & Maintenance 7.48 12.45
Credit Rating Fees 3.38 2.82
Credit Verification Charges 3.18 12.35
Postage, Telegram and Telephone 5.73 12.2%
Printing and Stationery 1.81 10.77
Rates & Taxes . 2.04 2.73
Legal & Professional Charges 24.56 41.25
Travelling and Conveyance 346 18.89
Bank Charges 1.52 2.00
Franking & Stamp Paper Charges 0.20 0.58
General Office Expanses 6.61 10.16
House Keeping Charges 2.88 4.13
Vehicle Hire & Maintenance 0.17 02,17
Payments to Auditar (Refer note 27.1) 1.18 0.54
Directors’ Sitting Fee 0.85 0.83
Commission 0.31 0.07
insurarice 0.11 0.46
IT Inirastructure and Maintenance Charges 2.84 3.28
Technical Verification charges 2.32 211
Less on sale of asset 1.85 0.08
CSR Expense (Refer note 27.2) 9.03 6.00
Total 136.69 212.47
27.1 Auditor fees
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
As auditor: .
Statutory audit {including Limited Review) Q.85 0.31
Tax audit 0.16 .11
Other Services 0.37 0.12
] 1.18 0.54
27.2 Deiails of CSR expenditure:
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
’ March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company 9.03 6.55
during the year
b} Amount spent during the period
i1 Constrictionfacquisition of any asset - In cash - -
Yet te be paid in cash - -
. Total - -
it Cn purpose other than (i) above - In cash 9.03 €.00
Yet to be paid in cash - -
Total 9.03 6.00




Muthoot Homefin (India) Limited -
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Note 2% Income Tax

[Rs in Million}

The components of income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2021 and year ended March 31, 2020 are:

Reconciliation of the total tax charge:

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Current tax 1310 -

Adjustment in respect of current income tax of pnor years - -

Deferred tax relating to origination and reversal of temporary differances 30.06 106.60

Income tax expense reported in statement of profit and loss 43.16 106.60

0C1 Section

Geferred tax related to items recognised in OC! during the year:

Net iossfigain) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans [0.35}) {0.17)

income tax charged to OC 0.35 _{o.1%)

The tax charge shown in tha statement of profit and loss differs from the tax charge that would apply if all profits had
been charged at tax rate applicable to the company. A reconciliation between the tax expense and the accounting
profit multiplied by substantively enacted tax rate for the year ended March 31, 2021 and year ended March 31, 2020

is, a5 follows:
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Accounting profit before tax 168.66 . 424.37
Statutory income tax rate of 25.168% (March 31, 2020: 25.168%) 4245 106.81
Effect of unrecognised deferred tax assets {4.05} {2.06}
Additional deduction under Income tax act - (0.76}
Effect of cnange in tax rate - 5.62
Othars 4.76 (3.01]
{income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 43.16 _106.60

The effective income tax rate for March 31, 2021 is 25.59% (March 31, 2020: 25.12%).

Note 30: Deferred tax

The following table shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and changes recorded in the Income tax expense:;

-Fixed assets: impact of difference between tax deprectation and

depreciation as per books of account
Statutory Reserve

interest spread on assigned loans
Provision for NPA

Prepaid expénse

Secunty Deposit

Bank Borrowings

Housing Loans processing fees
Provision for Gratuity

Tax on carry forward oss

Net deferred tax asset / (liabilities), net
Deferred tax charge/(credit)

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets/{liabilities)

Cpening Lalance 25 of 1 April

Tax incomef{expense) during the year recognised in profit or loss
Tax income/{expensel during the year recognised in QCI

Closing balance

Balance sheet Statement of profit and loss
As at March 31, As at March 31, For tha year For the year
2021 2020 ended March  ended March
31
9.84 7.49 {2.35) {2.15}
(62.31) {57.90} 4.41 {9.09)
{156.72) {119.82) 36,90 119.82
50.94 27.81 {23.13) {11.66}
{1.01} {1.37) [0.36) {0.14)
113 1.47 034 0.12
{3.64) {5.03} {1.39) {2.27)
1892 2983 10.91 17.74
141 1.17 (0.24) {0.28}
- 5.32 5.32 {5.32)
{141.44) {111.03)
30.41 106.77
_ N

For the year anded  For the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
{111.03) {4.26)
{20.06) {106.60)
{0.35) {0.17)

(141.44]

oy




Muthoot Homefin (India) Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Note 31: Earnings per share {Rs in Million)

Basic earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity holders of Company by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Net profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders 125.50 317.77

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for hasic earnings per share 11,91,55,843 11,91,55,843

Effect of dilution:
Weighted average number of ordinary shares adjusted for effect of dilution 11,91,55,843 11,91,55,843

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share (Rs.) 1.05 2.67

Diluted earnings per share {Rs.} 1.05 2.67




Muthoot Homefin (India) Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Note 32: Retirement Benefit Plan {Rs in Million)

Defined Benefit Plan
The Cornpany has a defined benefit gratuity plan. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratutty Act, 1972, Every employee

who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed
year of service.

The following tables summaries the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss and the funded
status and amocunts recognized in the balance sheet for the gratuity plan in Indian Rupees.

Statement of Profit and Loss

Net employee benefit expense recognised in the employee cost

For the year For the year
ended March 31, | ended March 31,

Particulars 2021 2020
Current service ¢ost 2.15 2.04
Interast cost on benefit obligation 0.25 0.22
Expected return on plan assets {0.08) -
Past Service Cost - -
Net actuarial '{gai'n],’!oss re¢dgnized in the year {1.39) {0.67}
Net (benefit) / expense 0.93 1.59
Actual return on plan assets 0.08 -

Balance Sheet

Reconciliation of present value of the obligation and the fair value of plan assets:

Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,

: 2021 2020
Defined penéfit obligation 5.35 4.66
Fair value of plan assets 1.76 -
Assat/ (liapility) recognized in the balance sheet {3.59) {4.66)
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities {gain)/ loss {0.16) 0.50
Experience adjustments on plan assets gain / (loss) - NA NA&

Changes in the present value of the defined banefit obligation are as follows:

As at March 31, | As at March 31,
Particulars 2021 2020
Opening defined benefit obligation 4.66 3.07
Transfer in/ {out) - -
Current service cost . : 2.15 2.04
Interest Cost 0.25 0.22
Benefits paid ' {0.32) -
Past Service Cost ’ ' - -
Actuarial lo$s / (gain} on Ré-measurements {1.39) {0.67}
Closing defined benefit obligation - 5.35 4.66




Muthoot Homefin {India} Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Changes in the fair vatue of plan assets are as follows:

As at March 31, | Asat March 31,

Particulars 2021 2020

Opening fair value of plan assets - -
Transfer in/Out - -
Expected return 0.08 -
Contributions by employer 2.00 -
Benefits paid {0.32) -
Actuarial gain/ {loss} - -
Closing fair value of plan assets 1.76 -

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company's plans are shown below:

{Rs in Miilion})

AsatMarch 31, | AsatMarch 31,
Particulars 2021 2020
Discount Rate 43%p.a 5.3% p.a
Salary Growth Rate 7% p.a. 7% p.a.
Attrition / Withdrawai Rate 38% p.a. 27% p.a.
Expected rate of return on Assets 5.3% p.a 7.0% p.a
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increases
Sensitivity Level 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease
. ] . DBO decreases by| DBO increases by| DBO increases by| DBO decreases by
impact on defined benefit obl M .
mpact on defined benefit obligation {(March 31, 2021) Rs 0.98 Rs .21 Rs 0.20 Rs 0.20
] . - DBO decreases by| DBO increases by DBO increases by; DBO decreases by
Impact on defined benefit obligat March 2020
pact on define it obligation (March 31, 2020) Rs 0.25 Rs 0.28 Rs 0.27 Rs 0.25

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at March 31, 2021 is 2 years {March 31, 2020: 3 years)

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and

other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

The discount rate is based on the prevaiting market yields of Governinent of India securities as at the balance sheet date for the

estimated term of the obligations.
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Notes to the financial statemeants for the year ended March 31, 2021

Note 36: Related Party Disclosures {Rs in Million)

Name of the entity Name of relationship

Muthoot Finance Limited Holding Company

Muthoot Insurance Broker Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary

Belstar Microfinance Limited Fellow Subsidiary R
Asia Asset PLC Fellow Subsidiary

Muthoot Money Limited Fellow Subsidiary

Muthoot Trustee Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary

Muthoot Asset Management Private Limited _ Fellow Subsidiary

b) Name of the Key management personnel (KMP)

Mr. George Alexander Muthoot Non executive Director
Mr. George Thomas Muthoot Non executive Director
Mr. Alexander George {resigned on 23" October 2020} Non executive Director
Mrs. Anna Alexander Non executive Director
Mr. KR Bijimon Non eslecutive Cirector
Mr. Eapen Alexander Whole Time Director
Mr. Jose Kuriap Independent Director
Mr. Jacah K Varghese Independent Director
M V. C. Janies Independent Director
Mr. Ramratthinam § (Dot 02™ February 2021} Chief Executive Officer
M. Vikram Rooprai [w.e.f. 05™ Fehruary 2021) Interim Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Pandurang A Kadam Chief Financial Officer
Mrs Jinu Mathen Company Secretary

Related Party transactions during the year:

Particulars Holding Company Key Management Personnel Fellow Subsidlary
As at March As at March As at March As at March As at March As at March

31, 2021 31, 2020 31, 2021 31, 2020 31, 2021 31, 2020
Remuneration paid to Whole Time Cirector - - 2.10 £.40 - -
Sitting fees paid to Director's - - 0.78 0.77 - -
iCC taken 370.00 4,390.00 - - - -
ICD repaid 37G.00 5,280.00 - - - -
Interast paid on ICD 0.31 3448 - - - -
|.gan Given - - - - 1,200.00 -
Laan received back C - 1,200.00 -
Interest coilecred on ioan given - - - - 53.23 -
Processing fee collected on loan given - - - - 0.90 -
Rent on account of infrastructuie siaring - 3.11 - - 0.07
Term ioan avaled - - - - - -
Term |oan repaid - 2,50G:0,00 - - - -
Interest on account of term loan availed - 22.51 - - - -
Balance outstanding as at the year end:
Sitting Fees Payable - - - 0.14 - -
Rent payabie - 0.80 - ' - - -
Mote:

3) Related parties have heen identified on the basis of the declaration received by tha management and other records availabie.
b} The remuneration to the key managerial personnel does not include the provisions made for gratuity and leave benefits, as they are determined on an
acwuarial basis for the company as a whole. '

Compensation of key manakément personnel of the Company:

Key management personnel are those individuals who have the autherity and responsibility for planning and exercising power to directly or indirectly
«control the activities of the Company and its employees, The Company considers the members of the Board of Directors which include independemt
cirectors (and its sub-committees} and Executive Committee to be key management personnel for the purposes of IND AS 24 Related Party Disclosures.

Particulars As at March As at March

31, 2021 31, 2020
Contribution to PF [defined contribiution) .29 0.27
Short term, benefits . 2007 29.06
Termination benefits 0.69 .27
Total 21.05 29.50




Muthoot Homefin (India) Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Note 37: Capital Risk Management {Rs in Million) -

Capital Management

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management policy is to ensure that the Company complies with
externally imposed capital requirements and maintains strong credit ratings and heaithy capital ratios in order to
support its business and to maximise shareholder value,

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and
réquirements of the financial covenants. In order to maintain or adjust the capitai structure, the Company may adjust
the amount of dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue capital securities. No changes
have been made to the ohjectives, policies and processes from the previous years. However, they are under constant
review by the Board.

Regulatory capital As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Common Equity Tierl capital 4,352.83 4,212.45
Tier 2 capital 53.69 68.87
Total capital 4,406.52 4,281.32
Risk weighted assets 8,823.60 8,352.56
Tierl capital ratio 49.33% 50.43%
Tier2 capital ratio. 0.61% 0.83%

Regulatory capital consists of CET 1 capitai, which comprises share capital, share premium, retained earnings including
current year profit less accrued dividends. Certain adjustments are made to Ind AS-based results and reserves, as
prescribed by the NHB.




Muthoot Homefin {India) Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Mote 38: Fair Value Measurement {Rs in Million)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the
principal {or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions {i.e., an exit price),
regardiess of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation technigue. in order to show how fair
values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques.

Fair Value Hierarchy of assets and liabilities

The carrying amount and fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2021 is as follows:

Particulars At FVTPL

Level-1 _tevel-2 Levei-3 Total
Investment in Mutual. Funds - 315.80 - “ 315.30
Investment in Security Receipts - 208.51 - 208.51
The carrying amount and fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2020 is as follows:
Particulars At FVTPL

Level-1 Level-2 Level-3 Total
investment in Security Receipts - - 222.02 - 222.02

Fair value technique )

Invaestment at fair value through profit and loss

For investment at fair value through profit and loss, valuation are done using valuation techniques at the measurement date.
Valuation techniques include market comparable methad, recent transactions happened in the Company and ether valuation
maodels. Yaluation is also done using quoted prices from active markets at the measurement date.

Fair vaiue of tinancial instruments not measured at fair value

Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair values of the Company's financial instruments that
are aot carried at fair value in the financial statements. This table does not include the fair values of non-financial assets and
non-financial liabilities.

[Particulars Level Carrying Value Fair Value

: As at March 31, | As at March 31, | As at March 31, | As at March 31,

2021 2020 2021 2020

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2 552.22 661.86 £52.22 661.86
Bank Balance other than above 2 131.25 - 131.25 -
Loans 3 13,767.19 17,257.71 13,767.19 17,257.71
Other Financial assets P 1,645.62 495,99 1,645.62 495.99
Total Financial Assets 16,096.28 18,415.56 16,056.28 18,415.56
IFinancial Liabilities
Trade Payable 3 33.12 26.08 33.12 26.08
Debt securities 2 3,087.84 2,837.84 3,087.84 2,837.84
Borrowings {other than debt security) 2 8,743.60 11,327.28 8,743.60 11,327.28
Other Financiat liabiiities 2 382.20 | 276.10 382.20 276.10
Total Financial Liabilities 12,246.76 14,467.30 12,246.76 14,467.30 |

There have been no transfers between the level 1, 2 and 3 during the period.

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, bank balances, trade receivables, trade payables and other financial assets and
liabilities approximate their carrying amount largely due to the short-term nature of these instruments hence carrying value of
these approximates fair value. ' -
investments
“investments in liquid, short- term mutual funds and security receipts, which are classified as FVTPL are measured using net
assets value at the reporting date multiplied by the quantity held.
Loans o
The company provides housing loans at variabie rate of interest rate. Hence, the fair value of the loans will be same as the .
carrying value of ioan.



Muthoot Homefin (India} Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Note 39: Risk Management {Rs in Million)

Risk is an integral part of the Company's business and sound risk neanagement is critical to the success. As a finangial intermediary, the Company is exposed te risks that are particular to
1ts lending and the envi within which it operates 2rd primanly includes credit, liquidity and market risks. The Board of Girectors of the Company are responsible for the overall
risk managemant approach and for approving the risk management strategles and principles. The Company has a risk 5 t palicy which covers all the risk associated with its
assets and llabilities.

The Company's principal financial liabitities comprise loans and bosrowings. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the company’s operations, At the other hand

Company's principal financial assets include loans and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations. The Company has a risk g palicy which covers risk
assooiated with the financial assets and habilities. The risk management policy is approved by the Board of Directors, Audit Cc i and Risk Mznag t ittee, Company
gwes due importanse to prudent lending practices and have impl ted suitabl es for risk mitigation, which Jnclude verification of credit history from credit information

bureaus, personal verification of a customer's business and residence, tachnical anid legal verifications, conservative lpan to value, and required term cover for insurance. The major
types of risk Company face in busi are credit risk, Hiquidity risk and market risk.

A) Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. The Company's main incoee senerating activity
is lending 1o custemers and therefore credit risk is a principal risk. Credit risk mainly arises from loans and advances and trade receivables.

The credit risk management policy of the Cormpany seeks to have following controls and key metrics that aitows credii, risks to be identified, assessed, raonitored and reported ina
timely and efficient managr in compliance with regulatary requirements,

- Standardize the protess of identifying naw risks and designing appropriate conirols for these risks

- Minimize 1osses due to defaults or untimely payments by boreowers

- Maintaln an appropriata credit administration and loan review system

- Establish metrics for portfolic monitoring

- Design appropriate credit risk mitigation techniques

As 3 part 0i a qualitative assessmant of whether a customer is in default, the Company also considers a variety of instances that may indicate unlikeness to pay. When such everts occur,

the Company carefully censiders whether the event thould result in treating the customer as defaulted and therefore assessed as Stage 3 for ECL calculations or whether Stasé 2is
appopriate.

Risk and meos t _

Muthoot Homefin 15 having a robust risk assessment framework to address each of the identified risks. The fullowing is the fr k impl ted in order 1o ensura completeness

and robustness of the risk assessment.
- Selection uf client bace - Adequate due diligence is carried out for borrowers and regulatory checks are done,
- Credit assessment - credit rating and credit huraau check .
- Foliow v and vagular iponitoring of the borrowers through their regularity of payments

Risk Mitigation
The follgwing risk mitigation measures has been suggested at each stage of loan life cycle:
- Loan Origination - site s¢reening, indepanoent vist by manager, adequate training to officers.
- Loan underwriting - Risk rating, incdependent assessment, eic.
- Lean Pre and Post Disbursement - disbursement at the branch premises and in the bank account only, tracking to avoid misuse of funds,
- Loan menitoring - credit officers to attend groug meeting, reminder of payment of EMU's on time, sfc.
- Loun coilection and recovery - monitor repayments, confirmation of batances,

fngrirment assessment - - - : :

The Company's impairmant, and Nt approach is set Gut in this note. It shouid be read in conjenction with the summary of significant accounting policies.
Definition of defoult and cure

The Com.pany considers a financial instrument defaulted and therefore Stage 3 (credit-impaired) fos ECL calculations in all cases when the horrower becames %0 days past due on its
contractual payments. As.a part of a qualitative ¢ of whether a is in default, the Company aiso considers a variety of instances that may tndiczte untikeness to pay.
When such events ocowr, the Company carefully conzidars whether the event should result in trzating the ¢ as defaulted and therefore ass2ssed ay Stage 3 for ECL calculations

or whethier Stage 2 is appropriate.

I is the Company’s palicy te consider a financial instrurnent as ‘cured’ and therefore re-classified out of Stage 3 when the due amnunt have been paid. The decision whether to classify
an as30t as Stage 2 or Stage 1 once cured depends on the updated credit grade, at the tme of the cure, and whether this indicates there has been a significant increase in credit risk
compared to wutial recognition,

Company's internal credit 126ng grades and staging criteria for loans are as follows:

Roling Loans Days past due Stages
High grade Mot yet due Stape |
Standard grade 1-30 DPD Stage 1
Sup-standard grace 31-60 PO Stoge i}
Past due but not impaired 61-90 DPD Stoge it
Irdividuatly impaired 141 DPD or More Stage i




Muthoot Homefin (India) Limited
Notes to the financial staternents for the year ended March 31, 2021

Exposure at Befault (EAD)
The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking intd account expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, inclugding repayments of
principal and intesest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed facilictes, and accrued interest from missed payments.

To cakeuiate the EAD for a Stage 1 joan, the Company the possible default events within 12 months for the calowlation of the 12 month ECL. However, if a Stage 1 loan that is

expected to default in the 12 manths from the balance sheer date and Is alsp expected to cure and subsequently default again, then all linked default events are taken inte account. For
Stage 2, Stage 3 and purchase of credit impaired asset {POCI| financial assets, the exp ¢ at default is considered for events over the liletime of the instruments.

Probability of default (PO}
The Frobability of Cefault is an estimate of the likelihood of default aver a given time horizon. To calculate the ECL for a Stage 1 loan, the Company the possible default events
within 12 months for the calculation of the 12 manth ECL. For Stage 2 and Stage 3 financial assets, the exposure at default is considered for events over the lifetime of the instruments.

The Company uses historicd information where availzble to determine PD. For certain pools where historical information is available, the PO is calculated using Incremental NPA
approach considering fresh stippage of past years. For those pools where historical information is not available, the PD/ default rates as stated by external reporting agencies is
considered.

8] Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company may not meet its financial obligations, Liguidity risk arises due to the unavailability of adequate funds at an appropriste cost or tenure.
The objective of liquidity risk’management, is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requi s. The Company consi ly generates
sufficient cash flows from operating and financial activities to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due. Our resource mobilisation tezm scurces funds from multiple
sources, including from banks, financial institutions and capital markets to maintain a healthy mix of sources. The resource mobHlisation team is responsible for diversifying fund raising
sources, maniging interest rate risks and maintaining # strong relationship with banks, financial mstitutions, mutual funds, insurance companies, other domastic and foreign fnancial
institutions and rating agencies to ensure the Wguidity risk is well addressed. -

-+

The maturity schedule for all financial liabilities and assets are regularly reviewed and monitored. Company has an asset liability management (ALM} policy and ALM Committee to
review and monitor the liquidity risk and ensure the compliance with the prescribed regulstory requirement. The ALM Policy prescribes the detailed guidelines for ging the liquidity
risk,

The tab'e below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial assets and liabifities 35 on-

Maturity pattern of assets and Babilitias #s on March 21, 2021:

Upto ) 1to2 Ztn3 306 [ & months Jtos Over S lnd AS

Particulars menth | months ! _months | months | to1 year 1103 years years years Fotat Adl Yotal
Borrowings {other thar debt securibes) 74.26 $6.52 371.08 546021 101757 | 327809 | 233097 | 1,04264| 875805 14.45 §,743.60
Dbt securities - 667.15 - - - 1,27().47 968.35 181.87 3,087.84 - 3,087.84
Other finangial lapilities 75.11 | 141.59 6.28 19.45 - 74.06 20.04 45,72 382.20 - 382.20
Loans 177.94 | 18453 184.93 509.73 979.07 2517621 242018 | 6867.98| 13,842.38 75.19 { 13,7671
Investments - 315.80 10.00 20.00 80.00 98.51 524.31 - 524 31
Other finangial assets 1,008.86 7.40 7.40 25.42 44.40 177.60 177.60 152.94 | 1,645.62 - 1,645.62

Maturity pattern of assets and liabilities as on March 31, 2020

Particulars Uptoj 1 wj 2 mj 3 tof | 8 months 1103 years $to§ Ovar § Total Ind A5 Total
to 1 year years years Adjustment
Borrowings (other than debt securit'es) 135.05 136.68 422.79 62926 | 1,181.42 4,432 .41 3,320.11 989.56 | 11,347.28 20.00 | 11,327.28
Debi securities - : 1,687.62 968.35 181.87 | 2837394 - 2,837.84
Other financial liabilites B0.31 108.65 7.01 087 - 48.34 9.43 1149 276.1¢ - 27610
Loans ) . 12715 8361 8361 245.60 435.43 3,483.40 | 342315 9,489.28 | 17,376.23 118.52 | 17.257.71
Investments 10.00 2000 80.00 112.02 22202 - 22202
Other financiai assets 11.70 5.50 5.80 17.10 33.60 134.40 136.80 150.79 495.95 - 495.99

¥he'tahle below shows the contractual expiry by maturity of the Company's commitments,

On Lessthan  3to 12 15 Over 5

4 4 . o Total
) 3 years years
31-Mar.21 .
ther urdrawn commitments to lend - 157.26 104.85 - - k6211
Total commitments - 157.26 104.85 . . 252.11
31-Mar-20 . . “
Other uindrawn commitnients to lend - 53134 17712 - - 08.46

Tots! commitments ) - 53134 177.12 . - 708.46




Muthoot Homefin {India} Limited
Notes to the financizl staternents for the year ended March 31, 2021

C) Market Risk
Market Risk is {he risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrurment will fluctuate because of changes in market factor. Such changes in the values of financial

instruments rmay result from changes in the interest rates, credit, liquidity, and other market changes. The Company is exposed o two types of market risk as follows: .

Interest Rote Risk _
Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The company is subject 1o interest rate risk, primarily since it tends to customers at floating rates and for maturity periods that may differ from funding sources. Interest rakes are highly
sensitive to many factors beyond control, including the manetary policies of the Reserve Bank of Ingia, deregulation of the financial sector in Indéa, domestic and international aconomic
and political conditions, inflation and other factors. In order to managa interest rate rigk, the company seek to optimize borrowing profite between short-term and long-term loans. The
company adopts funding strategies to ensure divessified resource-raising options to mirimire cost and maximize stability of funds. Assets and liabilities are categorized into various time
Huckets based on their maturities and Asset Liability Management Committee supervise an imerest rate sensitivity raport periodically for assessment of interest rate risks.

Due 1o the very nature of housing finance, the company is exposed to modarate to higher Interest Rate Risk. This risk has a major irnpact on the balance sheet as well a¢ the income
stalement of the company. Interest Rate Risk arises due ta:

i} Changes in Regulatory or Market Conditions affecting the interest rates

li} Shart term wolatility

iii} Prepaymant risk translating into a reil t risk

i} Real interest rate risk.

In short run, change in interest rate affects Company’s earnings { ed by NIl or NIM) and in long run it affects Market Value of Equity (MVE) or net worth. It is essential for the

company Lo not only quantify the interest rate risk but also to manage it proactively. The company mitigates its interest rate risk by keeping a balanced portfolic of fixed and variable
rate loans and berrowings. Further company carries out Earnings at risk analysis and maturity gap analysis at quarterly intervals to quantify the risk.

Finance department ensares that the risk is mitigated by availing funds at very competitive rates through diversified instr and by retaining a high credit rating.

The following table demonstrates the itivity 1o a n bly possible change in the interest rates on the portion of loans and borowings affected. With 3l other vaniables held
conitant, the profit befure taxes affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows.

Impact oo profit bafore tax For the year anded For the year ended
March 3}, 2021 March 31, 2020

On Loans and Advances

1% intrease 165.95 185 45

1% decrease {165.95) (189.45)

On Bmowil_tﬁ_

1% increase 134.60 149.23

1% decrease 1134.60) (149.23)

Price Risk

The Company’s exposure 10 price risk is not matertal and it is primarily on aceount of investment of tem,
The Company has a board appraved policy of investing its surplus funds in highly rated debt mutual fun

fisk bearing instruments.

Prepayment risk

porary treasury surplus in the highly liquid debt funds for very short durations.
ds and other instruments having insignificant price sisk, not being equity funds/

Prepayment risk is the sk that the Company will incur 3 financial loss because its cust s and cr parties repay Or request repayment earlier of later than expected, such as fixed
rate martgages when interast rates fall,

Foreign currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the value of a finaacial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.

D} Operational and business risx

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from systems failure, human ervor, fraud or extarnal events. When controls fall to operate effectively, operational risks can cause damage to
reputation, have legal or regulatory implications, o+ lead to financial loss. The Company tannot expect to eliminate alt operational risks, but it endeavours to manage these risks through
a control framework and by menitoring and responding to petential risks. Controls include effactive segregation of duties, access, authorisation and reconciliation procedures, staff
education and assessment pracesses, such as the use of internal Judit.




Muthoot Homefin (India) Limited
MNotes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Note 40: Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises

Based on and to the extent on information received by the Company from the Suppliers during the year
regarding their status under the Micro Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006(MSMED Act)
there are no amounts due to the suppliers registered under MSMED Act, 2006.

Note 41: impact of COVID-19

The COVID- 19 pandemic has led to a significant decrease in global & econemic activities. The extent to which
the pandemic, including the current “second wave” will impact the company’s operation and financial metrics
will depend on future developments which are highly uncertain as on date.

in accordance with the board approved moratorium policy read with the Reserve Bank of India {RB!) guidelines
dated March 27, 2020, Aprit 17, 2020 and May 23, 2020 relating to "COVID-19 —Regulatory Package”, the
Company had granted moratorium on the payment of instalments falling due between March 1, 2020 and
August 31, 2020 to all eligible borrowers. For all such accounts that were granted moratorium, the prudential
assets classification remained standstill during the moratorium period (i.e., the number of days past due shall
exclude the moratorium period for the purposes of asset classification under Income Recognition, Asset
Ciassification and Provisioning Norms),

Note 42: Ex-gratia Pavrnent

The Company vide Supreme Court judgement dated March 23, 2021 in the matter of Small Scale Industrial
Manufacturers Association vs. UO1 & Ors and other connected matters and in accordance with RBS circular no.
RBI/2021-22/17 DOR.STR.REC.4/21.04.048/2021-22 dated April 7, 2021 has put in place a Board approved policy
te refund /adjust the' interest on interest’ charges to borrowers during moratorium period i.e. March 1, 2020 to
August 31, 2020. In line with the RB! circular dated April 7, 2021 and the Indian Banks' Association (I1BA)} advisory
letter dated April 19, 2021, the Company has calculated such additional interest on interest and has refunded
the amount to all eligible accounts by crediting the respective loan accounts for ali live loan accounts and
creating a specific liability for all closed loan accounts, which will be paid in due course. -

Note 43: Restrcturing of Loan Accounts

During the year, to relieve COVID-19 pandemic related stress, the Company has invoked resolution plans for
eligible borrowers based on parameters laid down in accordance with the resolution policy approved by the
Board of Directors of the Company and in accordance with the guidelines issued by the RBI on August 6, 2020
Based on resolution framework, the Company has provided resolution plan for 159 accounts bhaving an
aggregate exposuue of Rs. 1,28.56 Mlllaons

Note 44: Segment Information : .

The Company is mainly engaged in the housing finance business and all other activities are incidental to the
main business activities of the Company. Further, all activities are conducted within India and as such there is no
separate reportable segment, as per the Ind AS 108 - "Operating Segments" specified under Section 133 of the
Act.

Note 45: Utilisation of proceeds of Private Placement of Non - Convertible Debentures _ ,
The company has during the year raised through private placement Rs 250 Millions of Secured Redeemable Non-
Convertible Debentures. As at March 31, 2021, the company has utilised the entire proceeds of the private
placement, net of issue expenses in accordance with the objects stated in the offer documents.



Annex 1l

Schedule to the Balance Sheet of an HFC

{Rs in Crore)

Particulars

Liabllitles Side

Amount outstanding  |Amount overdue

(1

accru

Loans and advances availed by the HFC inclusive of interest

ed thereon bet not paid:

(a)

Debentures : Secured

: Unsecured

(o)

Deferred Credits

{c)

Term Loans

{d)

Inter-corperate loans and borrowing

(e}

Commercial Paper

{f)

Public Deposits

(g)

Other Loans {specify nature)

(2)

ofint

Break-up of (1){f} above {Outstanding public deposits inchusive

erest accrued thereon but not paid):

1)

In the form of Unsecured debentures

(b)

In the form of partly secured debentures i.e. debentures
where there is a shortfall in the value of security

(c}

Other public deposits
: Assets Side

Amount Outstandlﬂg

(3)

[othe

Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables

r than those included in (4) below]):

{a)

Secured

1,402.79

(b}

Unsecured

(4}

Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets
counting towards asset financing activities

(i)

Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors

a} Financial Lease

b) |Operating Lease

{ii}

Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors

a) Assets on hire

b} |Repossessed Assets

i)

Other loans counting towards asset financing activities

a) Loarns where assets have been repossessed

b) Loans other than (a) above

(s)

Break-up of Investments

Cuysre
1

nt Investments

Quoted

(i) Shares

{a) Equity

ib) Preference

(i} |Debentures and Bends

{iii) JUnits of mutual funds

{iv) |Government Securities

(v} JOthers {please specify)

(%)

Unquoted

) |Shares

a) Equity

‘Ib) Preference

(ii} |Debentures and Bonds

(i} {Units of mutual funds

{ivi [Government Securities

{v) |Others (Security Receipts of Trust)




Long Term Investments

1 Quoted

} Shares

a} Equity

b) Preference

i) Debentures and Bonds

iii)  |Units of mutual funds

iv) pGovernment Securities

v) Others {please specify)

2 Unguoted

{i} |Shares

(a) Equity

(B) Preference

(tit  [Debentures and Bonds

(i} [Units of muival funds

{iv] |Government Securities

{v} |Cthers (Security Receipts of Trust) 9.85
{6) |Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in {3) and (4} above:
Amount net of Provisions
Category Secured Unsecured Total
1 Related Parties
{a) [Subsidiaries - - -
{b} (Companies in the same group - - -
(c) |Other related parties - - -
2 Other than related parties 1,276.72 - 1,376.72
' " Total 1,376.72 - 1,376.72

quoted and unguoted} :

{7) |Investar group-wise classification: of all investments {current and long term) in shares and securities (both’

Market Value / Break up or

Book Value {Net

Category fair value or NAV of Provisions
1 Related Parties
a} |Subsidiaries - -
b) Companies in the same group - -
¢} - J0ther related parties - -
2 Other than related parties 52.43 -
, : Total 52.43 -
(8} |Other information o
o - Particuiars Amount
{i)  |Gross Non-Performing Assets '
a)  |Related parties -
b}  {Other than refated parties 638.09
{i) |Net Non-Performing Assets
a). . |Related parties -
b}  ]Other than related parties 47.39

{iii) |Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt
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Minimum Disclosures

{Rs in Crore)

The foilowing additional disclosures have bean given under the Non-8anking Financial Company - Housing Finance Company {Reserve Bank) Directions,
2021 issued by the Rese:ve Bank of India vide Circular No: DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No $20/03.10.136/2020-21 dated February 17, 2021, The following numbers

are in crores in accordance with atove mentioned RBI circular,

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting pelicies regarding key areas of operations are disclosed as note 3 to Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2021,

Disclosures:
Capital
\Particutars As at March 31, 2021 | As at March 31, 2020
{il CRAR %) 49.94% 16.17%
{1} CRAR - Tier | Capital {%) 49,33%, 45.29%
{iii} CRAR — Tier i Capital (%) 0.61%| 0.87%;
{iv} Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier - {l Capital - -
{v) Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments - -
Resarve Fund ufs 29C of NHB Act, 1987
Particulars . As at March 31, 2021 | As at March 31, 2020
Balance at the beginning of the year
a) Statutery reserve ufs 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 26.53 W17
h) Amourit of Special reserve ufs 36(1){viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for the purpose 283 283
of Stetutory Reserve under Section 29C of the NMB Act, 1987 ' ’
¢l Total 29.36 23.00
Addition/ Appropriation/ Withdrawal during the year
Add:
a} Amount transferred u/fs 29C of the NHE Act, 1987 0.76 6.36
bl Amaunt of Speclal reserve ufs 35{1}{viii) of income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for the purpose 175 B
of StatOtory Reserve under Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 ’
Less:
! Amount appropriated from the Statutory Reserve ufs 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 -
o} Ametint withdrawn from Special reserve ufs 36{1}{viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 which has been
taken inta account for the purpose of provision ufs 25C of the NHB Act, 1987 ) .
Balante at the end of the year
a) Statutory Reserve ufs 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 27.29 26.53
b} A.mount of Special reserve ufs 36{1){viiil of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for the purpose 458 > g3
of Statutory Reserve under Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 ’ i
¢} Total 31.87 29.36
‘Investment
|Particutars As at March 31, 2021 | As at March 31, 2020
3.3.1. Value of Inyestments '
{1) Gross Value of Investments
{a} In India 52,43 2220
{%) Cutside India -
{ii) rovision for Dapreciation
~'{a) in Indiz - ~
{b) Qutside India -
fiil) Net vaiue of Investments
(3] in India 5243 2220

(b} Qutside India
3.3.2. Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments
{i) Opening Balance
{i) Add: Provsions made during the year
{iiil) Less: Write-off/Written-back of excess provsions during the year

{iv} Closing Balance
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34.2.

3.4.3,

A
B.
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Derivatives
Farward Rate Agreement (FRA) / Interest Rate Swap (IRS)

{Rs in Crore}

Particulars

As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

{i} The notional principal of swap agreements

(i) Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfil their obligations under the
agreements

(i) Collateral required by the MHIL uptn entering Into swaps

{iv! Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps

{v] The fair value of the swap book

NA

Na

Exchange Traded Interest Rate {iR) Derivative

|Particulars

As at March 31, 2021

(i} Wotional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives undertaken during the year
(instrumentwise}

{ii} Notionai principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding as on 31 March, 2021
finstrument-wise}

{iii) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not "highly effective”
{instrument-wisea}

tivl Mark-to-market value of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not “highly effective”
{instrument-wise)

NA

As at March 31, 2020

Na

Disclpsures on Risk Exposure in Derivatives
Qualitative Disclosure = NA
Quantitative Discigsure’

Particulars

Currency
Derivatives

Interest Rate
Derivatives

[} Derivatives {Notional Principal Amount)

{ii} Marked ta Market Positions

a) Agsets (+)

“{p} Liabiltiy {-)

{iii) Credit Exposure

{iv) Unhedged Exposures

NA

MNa

-Secyritisation

3.5.1. The information on securitisation of the Company as an originator in respect of outstanding amount of securitized assets is given below:

i} -Exposure {o own securifisations

First loss -

Others

il Exposure to third party securitisations towards Credit Enhancements

First toss

Otivers

b}  On-balance sheet exposures

i) Exposure to own securitisations

First loss

Others

i} Exposure to third party securitisations
First loss .

Others

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 | As at March 31, 2020
1. - Mo of SPVs sponsorad by the Company for securitisation transactions
2. Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the 5PVs sponsored by the Company
3. Total amount of exposures retained by the Company to comply with MRR as cn the date of balance
sheet '
a} Off-balance sheet exposures towards Credit Enhancements
. First loss )
Othars
b} On-balance sheet exposures towards Cradit Enhancerents
_First-toss
Others
4. Amount of exposures 10 securitisation transactions other than MRR
a!  Off-balance sheet exposures towards Credit Enhancements "
NA




3.5.2.

3.5.3.

3.5.4.
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Details of Financial Assets sold ta Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction

{Rs in Crore)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2021

As 3t March 31, 2020

i) Number of accounts sold

694

ii) Aggregate value {net of provisions} of accounts sold to SC/RC

80.60

{iil} Aggrogate consideration

57.12

(iv} Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years

(v) Aggregate gain/loss aver net book value

23.48

Details of Assignment transactions undertaken by company

Particulars

As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

(i) No of accounts

1104

2469

(i) Aggregate value {net of provisions) of sccounts assigned

100.00

250.00

(i} Ag-gregate consideraiion

100.00

250.00

{iv} Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years

{v] Aggregate gain/loss over net book value

Details of non-performing financial assets purchased / sold

Details of non-performing financial assets purchased:
|Particulars .

As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

1. {a} No of accounts purchased during the year

b} Aggregate outstanding

2 fa) Of_these, number of accounts restructured during the year

ih} Aggregate outstanding

NA

NA

Details of non-performing financial assets sold:

Particulars

As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

{a) No of accounts sold

{0} Aggregate outstanding

{C} Aggregate cansideration received

NA

NA

Asset iiability management
Maturity pattern of certain items of assers and habilities as at March 31, 2021

Liaoilities

Particulars Borrowings

Deposits from banks

Market
borrowings

Foreign Currency
Liabilitles

1 day to 7 days - Q.75

8t 14 days - 369

15 to 30/31 days 2.9%

Over une month upto 2 months - 9.65

Over 2 months upto 3 months - 37.11

Over 3 months te 6 menths - 5d.69

Over & mooths to 1 year 101.7G

Over 1 vear to 3 years - 327.81

Qver year to 5 years - 233.10

Over § yzars - 104.26

Total - 875.81

Ind AS Adjustment ) - 1.45

Total - 874.36

{Particulars

Assels

Advance Investments

Foreign Currency
Assets

1 day o 7 days 4,20 -

Bloid days 4.20

15 10 30/31 davs 9.40

ovee one month upta Z months 18.49 31.58

Cwver 2 wonihs upto 3 months 18.49 1.00

Over 3 ir-onths to & months 50.57 2.00

Crer 6 months tc 1 year 97.91 8.00

Over § year ta 3 years 251.76 9.85

QOver 3 yuar 10 S yaars 242.02 -

Over b yeors 686.80 -

Total 1,384.24 5243

Ind AS Adjustment 7.52 ) -

Total 1,376.72 5243
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3.1.2

3.7.3

3.7.4.

3.7.5.

4.2.
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{Rs In Crore)
EXposure
Exposure to Real Estate Sector
Category As at March 31, 2021 | As at March 31, 2020
a} Direct Exposure
i) Residential Mortgages
Lendirg fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will be :
occupied by the borrower or that is rented; 1,404.05 1,748.59
{ii) Commercial Real Estate -
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates. {office buildings,
retail space, mwlti-purpose commercial premises, multi-family residential
buildings, multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial or warehouse space, NIL NIL
hotels, land acquisition, development and construction, etc.). Exposure shal?
also include non-fund based limits
i) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities {MBS) and other securitized
exposures -
A, Residential Exposure NiL NIL
8. Commercial Real Estate NIL NIL
bs) Indirect Exposure NIL NIL
Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing Bank [NHB:I NIL ' NiL
and Housing Finance Companies (HFCs)
Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector 1,404.05 1,748.59
Exposure to Capital Market
{Particulars As at March 31, 2021 | As ak March 31, 2020
(i} Chrect investment in equity shares, ¢onvertible bands, convertible debentures and units of equity
oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt
) Advances against shares f bonds / debentures or olher securities or on clean basis to individuals
for investment in shares (inchuding IPOs ," ESOPs), canvertible bends, convertible debentures, and units
of equityoriented mutual funds
{ti} Advances far any othet purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or|
units ot equity oriented mutual funds are taken as primary security .
{iv] Advancas for @ny other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security of shares or
coenvartible bonds or convertible debentures or units of eguity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the NA NA

primary security other than shéres / convertible bonds / convertible debentures / units of equity
oriented mutual funds’ does not fuity cover the advances

{v] Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees 1ssued on behalf of stockbrokers
and market makers

tvi) Loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares/ bonds / debentures or other
securities or an ciean basis for meeting promoter’s contribution to the equity of new companigs in
anticipation of raising rescurces

{vii) Bridge loans to sompanies against expected equity flows [ issues -

{wii) All exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and unregistered)

Total Exposure to Capital Market

The Company has not financed any pacent company praducts during the finaical y2ar,

The Company has nct exceeded exposure limits as stipulated by the NHB prudentia! norms during the year with reference to Single Borrower

lelt{SGL],‘Group Borrower lil’ﬂll[GBL]

The Company does not have any exposure to unsecured advances during the financial year.

. Exposure to group companies engaged in real estate business.

Description

Amount

% of owned fund

{i} Exposure to any single entity in a group engaged in real estate business

{ii} Exposure to all entities in a group engaged in rea! estate business

NA

NA

Miscellanedus .
Registration obtained from other financial sector reguiators
Company has not obtained any registration from other financials sector regulators.

Disclosure of Penatties imposed by NHB/RE! and other regulators
No Penalty has hieen leviad on the company by NHE/RB) during the year.
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4.3.  Related party Transactions
Oetails of all material transactions with refated parties are disclosed in note 36.

4.4.  Group Structure

Diagrammatic representation of group structure has been given in Related Party Policy.

4.5.  Rating assignad by Credit Rating Agencies and migration of rating;
During the year, CRISIL has upgraded Long term rating to AA+/Stable from AA {Pasitive}. ICRA and CARE have reaffirmed short term rating of Al+ to the

COMPAry.
Rating Agency Type As at March 31, 2021 |As at March 31, 2020
CARE. Commercial Paper CARE Al+ CARE Al+

ICRA Commerclal Paper ICRA AL+ ICRA AL+

CRISI. Term Loan Borrowings LRISIL Ad+/Statde CRISIL AA[Positive)
CRISIL Nan-Convertible Debentures CRISIL AA+/Stable CRISIL AA{Positive)

4.6. Remuneration of Directors
Deraiis of Remuneratlan of Directors are disclosed in Form Ne. MGT -9

47. Management

Refer to the Management Discussion and Analysis repost for the relevant disclosures.

4.8.  Net Profit or Loss for the period, prior period items and changes in accounting policies
There are no-prior period items that have impact on the current year's profit and loss.

4.9 Revenue Recoghition

{Rs in Crore)

There have been no instances in which revenue recognition has heen postponed pending the resolution of significant uncertainties.

4.10. Company does not have any subsidiary therefor Accounting Standard 21 - Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS}) is not applivable.

5. Additional Disclosures
5.1.  Breakup of Provisions and Contingencies shown under the head Expenditure in Profit & Loss Account

Pavticuiars As at March 31, 2021 | As at March 31, 2020
1. Provisions for depreciation on investment - :
2. Provision made towards Income Tax 131 -
3. Provision towards NPA 9.65 5.51
4. Provision for Standard Assats [1.52) {0.71}
5. Provision for Gratuity 0.09 0.16
Break up of Loans & Advances and Provisions thereon
Particulars Housing Non-Housing
. As at March 31, 2021 | As at March 31, 2020 | As at March 31, 2021 | As at March 31, 2020
|Standard Assets
a) Total Quistanding Amount 1,203.59 1,544.76 138.63 177.01
b} Provision Made 4.82 6.18 0.55 0.71
Sub-Standard Assets
a) Total Qutstanding Amount 65.46 27.84 2.63 0.74
b} Provision Made 19.90 9.04 0.80 0.24
Poubtful Assets - Category - |
a) Total Qutstanding Amount 4.17 - Q.07
b} Provision Mads 1.35 - 0.02
Doubtful Assets - Category -1l
a) Total Cutstanding Amcunt - 0.51 - 0.08
&) Provision Made 0.37 - 002
TOTAL
a) Total Qutstanding Armount 1,269.05 1,577.67 141.26 177.89
b} Less: ind AS Agjustments 7.52 11.85 - -
Tolai Qutstancing Amount {A-B} 1,261.53 1,565_3_2 1ﬂ£§ 177.89
CY Provision Made 24.72 16.94 1.35 1.

§.2. Draw Down from Reserves _
The Somnaay has not made any draw down from reserves during the ﬂnqncial year.

5.3.

Concentration of Public Dépoeits, Advances, Exposures and NPAS

5.3.1. The Company does nat accept deposits from public being a non-deposit taking HFC.
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d' No. of complaints pending at the and of year

[Rs inCrore)
. Concentration of Loans and Advances
Particulars As ay March 31, 2021 | As at March 31, 2020
Total Loans & Advances to twenty Jargest borrowers 9.83 10.14
% of Loans & Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Totsl Advances of the company 0.70% 0.58%
Concentration of all Exposure {including off-balance sheet exposure)
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 | As at March 31, 2020
Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers 11.58 11.80
% o1 Exposures to twenty largest borrowers to Total Advances of the company 0.68% 0.60%
Concentration of NPAs
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 | As at March 31, 2020
Total Exposure to top ten NPA Acccunts 2.51 3.24
Sector-wise NPAs
Sector % of NPAs to Total Advances in that sector
As at March 31, 2021 | As at March 31, 2020
A. Housing Loans:
1 individuals 4.66% 1.88%
2 Builders/Project Loans 0.00% 0.00%
3 Corporates 0.00% 0.00%,
4 Others 0.00% (1.00%:
B. Non-Housing Loans:
1 individuals .19%) 0.05%)
2 Blilders/Praject Laans 0.00%) 0.00%
3 Corporates 0.00%| 0.00%
4 Others 0.00% 0.00%
Movement of NPAs .
Particulars As at March 31, X021 | As at March 31, 2020
{i) Net NPAs to Het Advances (%) 3.43% 1.33%
{iil} Movement of NPAs [Gross)
a) Opening Balance 33.80 14.53
b} Additions during the year 80.13 113.26
i Reductions during the year 45.34 93,99
&1 Cloring Balance §3.09 33.80
{iii) Movement of Net NPAs .
3) Cpening Balance 22.75 §.38
bY Additions during the year 56.09 7702
¢} Reductions during the year 31.45 63.25
d) Closing Balance 47.29 22.75
{iv} Movament of provislons for NPAs {excluding provisions on standard assets)
&) Cpening Balance 11.05 5.55
b) Provisions made during the year 24.04 36.24
) Write-off/write-back of excess provisions 14.39 30.74
" d) Closing Balance 20.70 _ 11985
The Commpany does not have any averseas assets as on March 31, 2021 (FY Nily,
The coripany does not have any off-balance sheet sponsored $PVs which needs to be consolidated as per acco_unting norms.
Disctosure of. Combiaints
Customer C laing
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 | As at March 31, 2020
a) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year 2 26
b} No. of complaints received during the year 515 438
¢4 Na. of complzints redressed during the year 517 46;

Previous year figures have been regruupedf reclassified wherever applicable.




